ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 6, 2003
3:04 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy Wl son, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representative Kelly Wl f

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Cheryll Heinze
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna
Representative Mary Kapsner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 25

"An Act relating to health care decisions, including do not
resuscitate orders and the donation of body parts, and to powers
of attorney relating to health care, including the donation of
body parts; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 25( HES) OUT OF COMM TTEE
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 25

SHORT TI TLE: HEALTH CARE SERVI CES DI RECTI VES
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE(s) WEYHRAUCH, Ogg

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/ 21/ 03 0038 (H PREFI LE RELEASED (1/ 10/ 03)

01/ 21/ 03 0038 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 03 0038 (H HES, JUD, FIN

02/ 13/ 03 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 13/ 03 (H Heard & Held

02/ 13/ 03 (H M NUTE( HES)

02/ 27/ 03 (H HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 27/ 03 (H Heard & Held

02/ 27/ 03 (H M NUTE( HES)

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- March 6, 2003



03/ 06/ 03 (H HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
W TNESS REG STER

LI NDA SYLVESTER, Staff

to Representative Bruce Weyhrauch

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented anendnents to CSHB 25, Version H,
and answered questions fromthe commttee.

EDI E ZUKAUSKAS, Attorney

Disability Law Center of Al aska, Inc.

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on CSHB 25(HES) and answered
guestions fromthe nenbers.

MARI A WALLI NGTON, M D., Ethici st

Provi dence Health System

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of CSHB 25, Version H,
asked and answered questions fromthe conmttee.

SHELLY OVENS, Heal th Program Manager

Di vision of Community Health and Enmergency Medical Services
Departnent of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of CSHB 25, Version H,
and answered questions fromthe nenbers.

BOB TAYLOR, Acting Director

Comm ssi on on Agi ng

Department of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of CSHB 25, Version H,
and answered questions fromthe nenbers.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-22, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R PEGGY W LSON call ed the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:04 p.m
Representatives WIlson, Gatto, Wl f, and Heinze were present at
the call to order. Representatives Seaton, Cissna, and Kapsner
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- March 6, 2003



HB 25-HEALTH CARE SERVI CES DI RECTI VES

Number 0080

CHAI R WLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 25, "An Act relating to health care decisions

including do not resuscitate orders and the donation of body
parts, and to powers of attorney relating to health care,
including the donation of body parts; and providing for an
effective date.”

CHAIR WLSON told the commttee the sponsor has provided a new
version of CSHB 25(HES) [23-LS0137\H, Bannister, 3/6/03] which
will cone before the conmttee today. [No notion was nade, but
Version H was treated as the working docunent. ]

Number 0153

LI NDA SYLVESTER, Staff to Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Al aska
State Legislature, explained that the <changes in the bil

i nclude incorporation of all the nmental health changes discussed
in a previous neeting and the inclusion of the anatom cal gift
donati ons | anguage. She told the conmttee they worked closely
with Life Al aska, which is the clearinghouse for organ donations
for Al aska. Ms. Sylvester said Jens Saakvitne is online to
answer any questions the commttee m ght have. She al so pointed
out the many individuals who are online or in the audience that
are avail able to answer questions fromthe nenbers.

Number 0369
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked the status on the surrogates issue.
Number 0403

M5. SYLVESTER told the conmttee that Edie Zukauskas, an
attorney for the Disability Law Center of Alaska, Inc. wll
address Representative Gatto's question. Ms. Sylvester went on
to say that she got together wth Edie Zukauskas and Dr.
Wallington to discuss exenpting surrogates from any nental
heal th care deci sions. If a person has nental health issues,
that person can nmake a directive for his/her general health care
i ssues, but is precluded from assigning a surrogate.

Number 0487

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- March 6, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked what the legal definition of a
surrogate is with respect to this bill.

EDIE ZUKAUSKAS, Attorney, Disability Law Center of Al aska,
Inc.("Disability Law Center"), replied there is probably nore
than one definition, depending on the context in which it is
used. The Disability Law Center's concern with surrogates in
this bill is that the nental health conmmunity has never before
been involved with surrogates because their goals and val ues
differ fromfamly and friends. Wat the Disability Law Center
would like to acconplish with this bill is to assure that the
mental health conmunity could partake in the benefits of the
bill, but assure that a surrogate not be appointed in the event
it is a nmental health issue. Ms. Zukauskas said she does not
believe it is a najor issue; however, it is inperative to hear
fromthe consuners. She told the conmttee that Ri chard Rainery
[ Executive Director, Al aska Mental Health Board, Departnent of
Health and Social Services] is famliar with this issue and
believes it can be dealt with in the House Judiciary Standing
Commi ttee.

Nunmber 0603

CHAIR WLSON said she agrees with Edi e Zukauskas that the House
Judiciary Standing Conmttee would be the appropriate venue to

deal with this issue. Chair WIlson told the commttee Bob
Briggs of the Disability Law Center was unable to neet with the
commttee today. The center is still working on a definition of

nmental health treatnent, and believes that issue can also be
dealt with in the House Judiciary Standing Conmttee.

M5. ZUKAUSKAS responded to Representative Gatto's request for a
general definition of surrogate by saying a surrogate i s someone
who acts in the place of another when that person is unable to
speak for hinself or herself.

Nunmber 0668

M5. SYLVESTER pointed out the definition of a surrogate in the
bill on page 30, line 9, which says "'surrogate' neans an
i ndi vidual, other than a patient's agent or guardian, authorized
under this chapter to make a health care decision for the
patient." She told the conmittee the bill lays out the
hierarchy of individuals in the order of who mght be a
surrogate.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- March 6, 2003



Number 0750

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE asked if the issue previously discussed by
Dr. Wallington [at an earlier hearing] concerning situational
depression was clarified in the new bill.

Nunmber 0835

MARI A WALLINGTQN, MD., Ethicist, Providence Health System
responded that the issue has been resolved since the exclusion
of surrogates is limted to only those issues surroundi ng nental
illness. She said her concern was that soneone who had other
medi cal issues needing to be decided would be left with no one
to decide for himher if surrogates were elim nated.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE asked Dr. Wallington about her concern
expressed in a previous neeting where a physician mght be
unaware of a patient's having situational depression in his/her
medi cal backgr ound.

DR. WALLI NGTON responded that her concern was based on the exact
opposite situation. She was concerned about soneone who had
been treated for situational depression who now needed treatnent
for a medical problem unrelated to that depression; however, the
i ndi vi dual coul d not speak for hinself or herself.

Nunmber 0842

CHAIR WLSON asked Dr. Wallington if the new version of the bill
addr esses her concerns.

DR. WALLI NGTON r esponded that she is happy wth the bill

Nunber 0859

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the section on "do not
resuscitate” (DNR) orders addressed the concerns of the nurses

associ ati on.

MS. SYLVESTER explained that the DNR section authorizes the DNR

pr ot ocol . She said a hospital may have its own policies that
may be driven by concerns other than the statutes, such as
liability. So the hospital my have policies that are nore

restrictive than what the statute would allow. For exanple, the
state does not force physicians to treat soneone in a particular
way; there is a nmechanismto opt out. An anal ogy woul d be that
an individual would not expect a hospital run by the Catholic

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- March 6, 2003



Church to provide abortions on demand; even though state |aw
allows abortion, the hospital is not forced to provide that
procedur e.

Number 0990

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if a surrogate has any authority to
overrule a policy in a situation where an individual has an
order for DNR, but a hospital has a policy of resuscitating.

Number 1020

SHELLY OWENS, Health Program Manager, Division of Community
Heal t h and Energency Medical Services, Departnent of Health and
Soci al Services, spoke of the inportance of having the ability
to give oral DNR orders for communities that do not have a
resident physician or for energency nedical technicians (EMSs)
to be able to receive a verbal DNR from the primary physician.
She told the commttee this is currently in existing law and

does not change in this bill. Ms. Omens said the division's
primary goal is to assure that the Confort One Program renains
intact if this bill passes. She said she wunderstands the

nurses' concern that there could be a conflict in a situation
where a physician is in the comunity and could conme into the
hospital to wite a DNR order, but to change that and renove the
ability to issue an oral DNR order would be problematic for bush
comunities and EMTs. Ms. Ownens said hospitals are able to
exercise nore restrictive policies, but she is unaware of
problens resulting from that, since this is currently existing
| aw.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO spoke about the conflict between the
surrogate with a DNR order and the hospital's policy that
prevents honoring it. He asked what happens in that situation.

M5. OVENS responded that the bill provides that when there is a
conflict and the health care provider does not want to honor a

particular health care directive, that wll be conmunicated.
The patient will be transferred to another facility or health
care provider that will honor the directive.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO clarified his question by saying he is
concerned about an energency situation when there is a DNR order
but the hospital has a policy that DNR s are not honored. He
asked if there is sonmething in statute that covers this
si tuation.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- March 6, 2003



Nunber 1204

CHAIR WLSON comented that that kind of enmergency is the reason
this bill is inportant, so that when an energency happens those
guestions are asked.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he would like to know what happens in
a case where the hospital has a policy and the surrogate has a
DNR order. He asked where that is addressed in the bill

M5. OVNENS referred to page 7 of the bill, which provides that a
health care provider may decline to conply wth an individual's
instruction for reasons of conscience, except for a DNR order.
She said that the Confort One Program is for the pre-hospital
environment where a patient is at home, and an EMI or vol unteer
[out in the Bush] is call ed.

CHAIR WLSON said she has served as an EMI in a small community
and her experience has been that the EMIs stay on top of who is
i1l or termnally ill. Everyone knows which individuals have
DNR or ders.

Nunber 1344

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he wants to clarify some confusion
about the nurses association's concern about conflict in a
situation where the hospital has a policy not to accept oral DNR
orders, but the statute would require her to accept an oral DNR
or der. Representative Seaton said on page 8, subsection (d)
still seens to be a problem He told the commttee that may not
be a problem unless there are hospitals in Alaska that do not
honor either oral or witten DNR orders.

Nunber 1404

CHAI R WLSON shared her experience as a nurse where doctors are
rem nded that they nust wite a DNR order to conply with the
hospital's policy. Chair WIlson said the nurses association's
concern was in an instance when a nurse talks to a doctor on the
phone and is given an oral DNR order in violation of hospital
policy, in which case the nurse will have to insist the doctor
cone to the hospital and wite the DNR order if that is the
hospital policy.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- March 6, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed out that the nurse would be in
violation of either the statute or hospital policy as the bill
is now witten.

DR. WALLI NGTON said she believes the bill says that the health

care provider nust conply when there is a DNR order. She said
if that order comes through Confort One, or through an oral or
witten order, the health care provider must conply. She said
she does not think the bill is addressing how that order is
act uat ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that is exactly the point. Thi s
| anguage would require nurses to conply with an oral DNR order
even in a case where it is against hospital policy. He said
this bill would require the institution to accept oral orders

and there is no exception to that.

DR. WALLI NGTON replied that she believes what the bill says is
that an oral order may be acceptable and not that an oral order
nmust be accept ed.

Number 1561

DR. WALLINGTON told the conmttee that hospitals honor Confort
One orders when the patient is in the hospital.

Number 1624

BOB TAYLOR, Acting Director, Conm ssion on Aging, Departnent of
Adm ni stration, testified to the inportance of this bill to the
comm ssi on. He thanked the commttee for working to nake these
i ssues clearer and easier for the elderly and their famlies in
maki ng these inportant decisions. He told the conmttee about a
public policy report he was reading recently from the Nati onal
Acadeny on Aging Society and the Gerontol ogy Society of Anmerica
that tal ks about how inportant it is to take these fragnented

statutes and contain them in one place. He said that the
commttee is on the cutting edge of this, as only 16 other
states have nmanaged to pull everything together into a
conprehensi ve package that nakes everything clear to the public
and health care providers. M. Taylor said the conm ssion
applauds the committee's work and hopes the nenbers w il pass
this bill.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if there is a copy of a nodel from
sone other states that have already nade this |aw

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- March 6, 2003



MR. TAYLOR said the National Acadeny forum will be |ooking at
what the states have done to see if one nodel would neet the
requirenents of all the states. He said the acadeny is not
t here yet.

M5. SYLVESTER said the nodel |egislation the sponsor worked from
is the Five Wshes legislation that has been adopted in 37
st at es. This legislation came from the Uniform Health Care
Deci sions Act nodel I|egislation approved by the Anmerican Bar
Association and inspired by the Florida organization, Aging wth
Dignity [which was directed by Mther Teresa's attorney]. She
said the other nodel legislation that is in the bill is the
mental health care directives, which developed as a result of a
grassroots effort in 1996. The law on the [Uniform Anatonica

Gft Act and the living will statute goes back to the 1970s.

Nunmber 1839

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA said that while Five Wshes may have been
a nodel, this bill is pulling all of these dissimlar things
together and putting themin a nodel for Al aska. She said other
states are doing the sane thing.

MS. SYLVESTER responded that she recalls that Hawaii has done
this and there nay be other states who have also done a very
conpr ehensi ve approach to advance directives.

Nunber 1917

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON spoke on a possible conceptual amendnent,
on page 8, line 22, after the word "physician" to insert the
words  "if or al orders are allowed by the applicable
institution". He said the purpose for this anendment would be

to provide for the non-physician health care provider in a
position of having to either violate hospital procedures or the
state statute. If oral orders are allowed by the institution,
then the health care provider would be required to follow the
or der.

DR. WALLI NGTON said she has no problemw th the anmendnent.
M5. OWNENS had a question about the definition of the word
"institution". She said she does not see this inpacting a DNR

order in the field.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he has no problem substituting the
word "hospital” for "institution” in his conceptual anendnent.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 9- March 6, 2003



MS. SYLVESTER referred to the definition of a hospital on page

28, line 29. If the word "hospital" replaced the word
"institution", she said the sponsor wuld not oppose the
anendnent .

Nunber 2069

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Conceptual Amendnent 1. He
said on page 8, line 22, after the word "physician", insert the
words "if oral orders are allowed by the applicable hospital".
There being no objection to the anendnent, the Anmendnent 1 was
adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE asked what would happen if, for exanple
she traveled to Texas or another state that has not adopted this
bill. Wuld this advance directive be honored?

DR, VWALLI NGTON responded that she believes hospitals would be
delighted that patients have advance directives and would be
happy to follow them However, she told the commttee she is
not a lawyer, so she is unable to speak to the l|egal issues

Her thoughts are that since this bill says Alaska will accept
directives from other states, it would depend on whether there
is simlar language in the other state's statutes.

Number 2155

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to report CSHB 25 [Version 23-
LS0137\H, Bannister, 3/6/03], as anended, out of commttee with
i ndi vidual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, CSHB 25(HES) was reported from the
House Heal th, Education and Soci al Services Standing Conmittee.

Number 2190
ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adjourned at 3:45 p.m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -10- March 6, 2003



